## Summary of Proceedings - Minutes EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

## Regular Meeting of September 17, 2024, 5 p.m.

MISSION STATEMENT: "Building health, well-being, and resiliency."

(Note: Motions are identified by maker's name in **bold First: Second**)

Video	Item	Action
Time		
Code		
0:20	1. Pledge of	L. Peralta
	Allegiance	
1:40	2. Roll Call and Call	Present were: L. Peralta, K. Macedonio, and L. Patrick, and the
	to Order	meeting was called to order by Chair Macedonio at 5:10 p.m.
1:56	3. Approval of	The agenda was approved with the following changes: Item 7C
	Agenda	was pulled for future updates and review.
		Motion: Approve Agenda
		L Patrick: L. Peralta Motion Carried, 3-0
3:11	4. Public Comment	None.
3:33	5. Community	Chair Macedonio had two community announcements including
pp 5-8	Announcements	details about the TreeVitalize Grant and the Senior Living article,
of		which will be featured in the Mojave Desert News along with a
packet		2x10 banner ad on Wednesday, September 18th.
4:55	6. Consent Calendar:	
pp 9-13	<b>A</b> . Minutes of 09/10/24	A. No comments.
of		
packet		
5:37	B. Approve Warrants	B. Chair Macedonio reported one addition to the list: a bill for
pp 14-	B. Approve Warrants	Crossbolt Electric. There was a power failure in the lobby at Bartz-
15		Altadona, where Crossbolt Electric resolved the issue by cleaning
of		a circuit breaker. The total amount for the vendor warrants is now
packet		\$6,445.07. Additionally, there is an ongoing issue with a \$429
puonot		check written to Spectrum, as only part of the payment was
		applied. The remaining portion is still unaccounted for; they are
		working with the bank to verify the transaction.
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
8:55	C. Financial Reports –	C. Eva reported \$41,553.56 in the Cancer Fund and Cancer Fund
pp 16-	As of August 31, 2024	CD. The district has about \$1 million in its checking account, and
24	1. Balance Sheet	the rest of the balance sheet showed no significant changes.
of		Accounts payable include an unused portion of a contract being

packet	<ul> <li>2. Profit and Loss</li> <li>Statement</li> <li>3. Check</li> <li>Disbursements</li> <li>4. Payroll Summary</li> <li>5. Investment Reports</li> </ul>	tracked. The profit and loss statement highlighted \$9,600 in tax revenue received so far, with more expected. Notable expenses include repairs and consultant contracts. There was a net income loss of \$45,000 for August, but tax revenue is expected to offset this in the coming months. There was also a detailed discussion about investments. The board had previously decided to move funds to CLASS (California Local Agency Security System) due to its higher yield than LAIF (Local Agency Investment Fund). By moving \$1 million to CLASS, the district could earn around \$4,700 in interest over the past 30 days and potentially \$5,000 monthly. Since construction projects have been delayed, the district does not need immediate access to these funds, which can be transferred quickly if required. The board reaffirmed its prior decision to proceed with the transfer, with plans to maintain three to six months' worth of operating capital in checking accounts. Further steps will involve gathering signatures and completing the necessary procedures, which will likely be ready by the next meeting. The board aims to maximize interest earnings while keeping enough liquidity for operations. <b>Motion: Approve Consent Calendar. L Patrick: L Peralta.</b> Motion Carried, 3-0.
21:40 pp 25- 27 of packet	7. Continued Business A. Facility Reports 1. 9278 North Loop Boulevard Property 2. 9300, 9350 North Loop Boulevard Property 3. 8101 Bay Ave. Property	<ul> <li>A. Chair Macedonio discussed replacing the third air conditioning unit at the 9300 building. There are three units: one was replaced about seven years ago, another was recently replaced due to an emergency, and the third is 50 years old. Estimates from their regular maintenance company indicate that replacing the third five-ton unit would cost \$12,500, including the permit, duct test, crane service, and parts and labor (excluding any attic duct repairs). They also discussed adding a one-ton mini-split unit to the office to control heating and cooling more efficiently.</li> <li>Motion: Approve Replacements Totaling \$17,900.</li> <li>L Patrick: L Peralta. Motion Carried, 3-0.</li> </ul>
25:32	<b>B.</b> Grant Policies and Procedures Status 1. Cancer Assistance Fund	<ul> <li>B. The board reviewed the draft of the Cancer Assistance Fund policies and procedures. There was a recommendation to eliminate the community advisory board if there are no active community members interested, and instead, appoint a standing committee of two directors. This would still comply with the Brown Act, allowing the board to operate while funds remain frozen until a decision is made. The board agreed that Counsel Alex Lemieux would draft new policies and procedures, with input from Eva (the auditor and CPA), to ensure compliance, as any funds distributed must follow proper fundraising procedures.</li> <li>It was noted that the Cancer Fund is held in a restricted account, separate from the district's general operating funds, as indicated</li> </ul>

	<b>C</b> . Legislative	<ul> <li>in the audit. There was also a mention of exploring the possibility of involving the Ridgecrest Regional Foundation in the future, but that is a long-term consideration. The next step is for Counsel Alex Lemieux to draft the necessary documents for fundraising and distribution.</li> <li>This item and reports were information-only; no votes were taken.</li> </ul>
	Outreach	C. Pulled
31:44	D. Discussion of Regional Government Services (RGS) Contract Activities 1. District Newsletter 2. Facebook/Social Media Accounts	<b>D.</b> The board discussed outreach efforts as part of the RGS contract, focusing on social media and newsletter options. They are waiting for RGS staff to help regain access to the district's Facebook account, which is necessary for their outreach plans. RGS staff is also working on a district newsletter proposal, suggesting a one-page format with English on one side and Spanish on the other, estimated to cost \$1,000 per issue. The board debated whether they were ready to implement the newsletter and decided to focus on social media and the website for now rather than proceeding with the newsletter.
		They discussed further developing their presence on platforms like Instagram and LinkedIn and agreed to prioritize social media engagement. Additionally, a suggestion to produce short video segments highlighting the district's history and ongoing projects was made, with potential costs between \$4,000 and \$5,000. The board agreed to bring back a video proposal for further consideration in October.
		This item and reports were information-only; no votes were taken.
38:18 pp 28- 29 of packet	E. Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) Update – Discussion of Poverty Level	<b>E</b> . Chair Macedonio reviewed the importance of understanding financial levels in the community, particularly regarding the federal poverty line, as it impacts healthcare access. The assessment highlights that financial struggles can lead to delayed healthcare, fewer providers, and transportation challenges. The upcoming community health needs assessment survey will ask personal questions to gather specific data, which will allow for targeted interventions. The survey questions will be presented at the next meeting in early October, with a follow-up in the second meeting of October.
40:33	<b>F.</b> Future Grantwriting for Staff	This item and reports were information-only; no votes were taken. <b>F</b> . Chair Macedonio discussed the need to bring in new funds through grants and highlighted the importance of hiring individuals with a proven track record in grant writing. They noted that RGS (Regional Government Services) has grant writers available and agreed to inquire about potential support from RGS. The conversation discussed the upcoming election and whether new

		directors might have grant writing experience. Additionally, they discussed grant writers' compensation, noting that they must be paid upfront or by salary, as they cannot be paid out of grant funds themselves. The board will bring back information on grant writing options by October 1st for further discussion. This item and reports were information-only; no votes were taken.
47:50 pp 30 of packet	8. New Business A. Approval of Draft Employee Handbook Questions and Answers	A. Chair Macedonio reported the ad hoc committee, consisting of Director Patrick and Director Peralta, worked with the attorney to reduce the 65-page employee handbook to just three pages. The manual covers key areas such as introduction, employment conduct, compensation, benefits, health, safety, security, workplace guidelines, employment separation, and miscellaneous items. Eleven remaining questions were addressed and incorporated into the draft. A final edit will be done to ensure everything is in order, and then the handbook will be printed for distribution to new employees.
		Motion: Approval of Draft Employee Handbook Questions and Answers L Peralta: L Patrick. Motion Carried, 3-0
50:03 pp 31- 25 of packet	<b>B.</b> Review of Receipt and Change Orders For 9300-9350 North Loop Boulevard	<b>B.</b> Chair Macedonio reported the project has resulted in a new walkway and the elimination of a trip hazard. The original bid was \$69,000, and several change orders were reviewed. Change Order 1 (\$125) was for fixing an underground leak. Change Order 2 (\$3,960) covered removing the trip hazard. Change Order 3 resulted in a \$650 deduction due to a job deficiency that required a structural engineer. Change Order 4, totaling \$353, is for an encroachment fee and permit fee required by California City for pipe installation. Additionally, a proposal to paint the fascia around the building to improve its appearance was negotiated down to \$2,410 (Change Order 5).
		Motion: Review of Receipt and Change Orders For 9300-9350 North Loop Boulevard L Peralta: L Patrick. Motion Carried, 3-0
54:40	9. Closed Session	The Board moved into Closed Session for discussion of those items enumerated on the agenda cover.
56:26	10. Report Out of	Upon return to Open Session, General Counsel Alex Lemieux
	Closed Session	stated, "The board met in a Closed Session on three items with real property negotiator pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8. For CS1, the property or 9278 North Loop Boulevard with Cajon Medical Group, under negotiation price in terms of payment. The board took no reportable action on this item. For CS2 we didn't do, so there's no reportable action there. CS3 as public employee appointed pursuant to Government Code section, 54957(b)(1), title, administrative assistant. The board voted in closed session three to zero to authorize to extend an offer of
		employment to Socorro Chavez. The terms are \$23 an hour, with

59:13	11. Appointment of Administrative Assistant	five to 10 hours per week scheduled to be determined a starting date of September 18. Further details will be negotiated and presented to the board to ratify a longer form contract at a future meeting. This item will also be addressed in agenda item 11, and there will be an open session discussion on this item. The third item is CS4, conference with real property negotiator, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8; the property is 9300 North Loop, in California City, and the agency negotiator is Alex Lemieux. The negotiating partner is Bartz-Altadona Community Health Center, under negotiation price in terms of payment, the board provided direction to the agency negotiator, and no further reportable action was taken. This concludes Counsel's closed session report."
		Motion: Extend Employment Offer to Socorro Chavez L Patrick: L Peralta. Motion Carried, 3-0
1:01:40	<ul> <li>12. President's</li> <li>Comments</li> <li>A. Recommended</li> <li>Training: Grant</li> <li>Funding 201 for</li> <li>Special Districts</li> </ul>	<b>11A.</b> Chair Macedonio noted that all three board members have completed training on the Brown Act, grant funding 101, and keeping up with CSDA. The recommendation for the next two weeks is to continue with grant funding 201. CSDA will also set up email access for further training. The board members are encouraged to keep pace with the training, and all certificates will be posted on the website to raise awareness and ensure everyone is aligned.
1:03:10	13. Directors' Comments	The board discussed placing an ad in the Mojave Desert News for the upcoming breast cancer issue on October 16. The ad will cost \$107 in color. The board clarified that the ad is not being funded by the Cancer Fund but is part of their advertising efforts.
1:04:33	<ul> <li>14. Future Agenda Items</li> <li>A. Logic Model</li> <li>B. Review</li> <li>Administrative Code</li> <li>13C. Surplus Land Act</li> </ul>	This item and reports were information-only; no votes were taken.
1:06:25	Adjournment	Motion to Adjourn at 6:49 p.m. L Patrick: L Peralta Motion Carried, 3-0